INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To,
The Members,
Rane T4U Private Limited.
Bengaiuru

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Rane T4U Private Limited {"the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {“Ind-AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2019, its profit,
total Comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relsvant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the requirements and the 1CAl's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.
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Material uncertainty relating to going concern

We draw attention to Nate No. 28.4 to the financial statements which indicates that the Company
incurred a net loss during the year and that its current liabilities exceeds current assets although
its networth is positive which indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as going concern. The management of the
Company believes that considering the expected increase in business, there would be
reasonable profits in the near future to enable the Company to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities under normal course of its business and in addition there would be continued support
from the holding company as and when reguired. Accordingly, the management has censidered
It appropriate to prepare these financial statements based on going concern assumption.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board of Directors’ report and other
information to published along with but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and

will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowiledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Ve have read and considered Management Discussion and
Analysis and Board of Directors’ Report and have noticed nothing inconsistent.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thereafter.

This respensibility alsa includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
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and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
palcies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating "
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentaticn of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaticns, or has no realistic alternative but
1o do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the

econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant {o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("Order™) i1ssued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement an the matters specified in Paragraphs 3

and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

f}

9)

h)

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in equity and Cash Flow Staterment dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account,

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(18) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accerdance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements.

ii. the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law of Indian
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, an long term contracts
including derivative contracts.

b
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iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045323

(D

CHERIAN K BABY
Place: Chennai M?O ) Partner
Date: May 22, 2019 M No. 16043
I
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements of Rane T4U Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2019

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the fixed
assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our

opinicn frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable property, hence, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the
management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
and no material discrepancies have been identified. All discrepancies have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintaed under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii} (a)
to 3(iii) (c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and securities.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
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has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, provisions of
section 148 of the Act with regard to maintenance of cost records are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, in our opinion,
the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, customs duty
and any other applicable statutory dues, with the appropriate authorities no material
statutory dues were outstanding for more than six months from the due date as at the

year end.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, there are no
statutory dues as at the year-end which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from financial institution or
bank or Government and it has not issued any debentures as at the balance sheet

date.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and pravided to us by the Company, the Company
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). The term loans obtained during the year have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, no frauds by

}’ Page 8 of 13

# 424, 4th C Main, 6th Cross, OMBR Layout, Banaswadi, Bangalore 560043

\ Tel . +91+80+42444999, Fax | +91+80+42444900, Email: bangalore@varmaandvarma.com /}




“?f,

Dhemes & Diromea

Chartered Accountants

Xl

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Tel : +91+80+42444999, Fax : +31+80+42444900, Email: bangalore@varmaandvarma.com

the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, were noticed or
reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
i not a Nidhi Company and Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the prowisions
of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind-AS 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
has made preferential allotment of compulsorily convertible preference shares during
the year to existing holders of such shares and the amounts raised have been used
far the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected

with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

7
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Xvi. According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
verification of records maintained and provided to us by the Company, the Company
is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingiy, the provisions of clause 3(xvi} of the order are not applicable to
the Company.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 00456325
BANgAI )

ey —~ 1P
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e CHERIAN K BABY
Piace: Chennai Partner
Date: May 22, 2019 M No. 16043

Page 10 of 13

# 424, 4th C Main, 6th Cross, OMBR Layout, Banaswadi, Bangalore 560043

Tel : +91+80+42444999, Fax : +91+80+42444900, Email: bangalore@varmaandvarma.com Vi
it _—_—_/

A\




Dorar & Thrma

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

| Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rane T4U Private
Limited as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system cver financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
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internal financial controls over financial reperting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internat control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with Ind-AS and the generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind-AS and the generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonabie assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting appropriate for its size and nature of aperations and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

R - k?,_&? )

CHERIAN K BABY
Place: Chennai Partner
Date: May 22, 2019 M No. 16043
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RAHE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

{Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Particulars Note As at As at
Ne. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A. ASSETS
1 MHon-Current Assats
{a) Property, plant and equipment 2 11,884,696 16,902,122
{b) Other Intangible Assets 3 26,437,507 35,361,122
{c} Financial Assets
(#) Cther financial assets 4 13,217,574 17,291,708
{d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 51,310,000 31,298,000
{e) Other non-current assets 6 145,572 167,926
Total non-current assets 102,965,349 101,020,878
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 6,917,663 11,490,465
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables ] 35,522,077 28,750,030
(H} Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 158,401 99,861
(ili} Other Financial assets 10 5,483,065 3,134,678
{c} Current tax assets {net) 1 3,702,105 3,293,499
(d) Other Current Assets 12 3,361,433 1,316,985
Total curent assets 55,144,744 50,085,518
TOTAL ASSETS 158,110,093 151,106,396
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 13A 16,670,000 16,670,000
{b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 138 243,500,000 185,000,000
(c} Other Equity 14 {238,613,857) (187,181,005}
Total equity 21,551,143 14,488,995
Liabilitles
2 Non-Current Llabilitles
{a) Financial Liabllities
(i) Borrowings 154 30,239,050 33,596,537
{b) Provisions 16 5,587,377 4,118,287
Total nen-current iabilitles 35,826,927 37,714,824
3 Currant Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 158 29,956,682 18,589,138
(i) Trade Payables 17
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small . N
enterprises; and
b} Total outstanding dues of ather creditors 23,509,528 32,564,005
(iify Other financial liabilities 1B 21,979,430 21,870,128
{b} Provisions 19 10,882,717 8,750,803
{c) Other current Liabilities 20 14,403,616 17,128,503
Total current labilities 100,732,023 98,902,577
Total Liabilitles 136,558,950 126,617,401
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 158,110,093 151,106,396
HOTES FORMING Fl‘ARTf!F THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-28

Ish Lakshman
Chalrman
DIK : 00012602

Prashanth Kumar KN
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chennai

Date: 22/05/2019

half I: W tors

Pratap C Hegde
Executive Director
DIN : 02496473
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Vivekanandaa M
Sacretary
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Cherlan K Baby
Partnar

M. No, 16043

Place: Chennai
Date: 22/05/2019



RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Amaunts in indian Rupees)

Particulars

| Revenues from Operations
I Qther Income
Il Total Income (1+11)

I¥ Expenses:
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
QOther expenses

Total Expenses {IV)

V Profit before exceptlonal items and tax (Il - IV)
vl Exceptional Items (Refer Note No.28.7)
Vil Profit before tax (VI « VIIl)
Vill Tax Expense: {Refer Note Ma.28.1}
{1) Current Tax
(2) Deferred Tax

1X Profit{toss) for the period from continuing operations
X Other Comprehensive Income
A. i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassfied to profit or loss
B. 1) ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
XI Total other comprehensive income (A(i-ii)+B(f})
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI+XIl)
Xl Earnings Per Equity Share (Refer Note No.28.2)
(a} Basic {in Rs.)
(b) Diluted {In Rs.)

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note Year ended Year ended
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
21 238,636,211 143,643,675
22 4,340,278 2,953,703
242,976,439 146,597,378
76,902,936 48,197,280
23 4,572,802 (8,456,965)
24 127,074,941 110,152,401
25 11,938,700 19,025,303
26 17,512,447 21,626,536
27 74,378,086 62,669,700
312,379,913 253,214,255
(69,403,424) (106,616,877)
- 4,781,588
(69,403,424) {111,398,465)
1,472,080 118,122
{19,862,669) (14,729,808)
{18,390,590) (14,611,686)
(51,012,834) (96,786,779)
(574,349) 754,479
149,331 (196,16%5)
(425,013) 558,314
(51,437,852) (96,228,465)
(30.60) {82.55)
(2.16) {10.38)
1-28

For and on behalf of thi Board of Directors

.

Hanlsh Lakshman
Chairman
DIN : 00012602

x\w\

Prashanth Kumar K N
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chennal

Date: 22/05/2019
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RARE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

For the Yaar ended
March 31, 2019

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for :

Income tax expense

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss

|interest Income recognised in profit or loss

Net {gain) / loss arlsing on financlal assets mandatorily measured at falr value
through profit or loss

Excess provision for expected credit loss written back
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill

Loss on sale of discarding of assets

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

Net foreign exchange (gain}/ loss

Movements in working capital :

{Increase} / decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase) f decrease in inventories

{Increase) / decrease in other assets

Increase / {decrease} in trade payables

Increase f {decrease} in provistons

Increase f {decrease) In other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
[Income tax pald (net)
MNet cash generated by operating actlvities

B. Cash flow from investing activitles

Proceeds on sale of Investments

Proceeds on sale of praperty, plant and equipment
Interest received

|Amounts advanced to related parties

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Net cash {used in} / generated by investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from fssue of equity instruments of the company

Proceeds from issue of convertible non-participating preference shares
Repayment of redeemable preference shares

|Proceeds from mon-current borrowings from banks/ financial institutions
Repayment of non-current borrowings to bankss financlal institutions
Proceeds from non-current borrewings from other parties

Repayment of non-current barrowings to other parties

Net proceeds from/ (repayment) of borrowlngs-Working Capital Loans
Interest Paid on Redeemable Preference Shares

Interest paid-others

Ret cash used in financing activities

Net increase {n cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rate changes en the balance of cash and cash equivalents
held in foreign currencies

Cash and Cash equivalents at +e end of the year

{18,390,5%0)
11,938,700
(305,960)

(153,507)
(997,718)
17,512,447

338,196
(353,315}
(913,073}

(51,012,834)

8,695,180

(4,861,256}
4,572,802
1,683,143

{9,054,477)
3,027,154

(2,724,887)

(42,377.,604)

{7,357,521)

(49,675,175)

{1,830,173)

527,687
459,467

{4,103,975)

{3,116,821)
58,500,000
23,363,290
(26,909,332)
11,367,544
(1,640,793)
54,680,709
88,540
99,861
158,401

(14,611,686)
19,025,302
(889,859)

(124,643}
(1,815,775)
21,626,536

4,419,528
1,500,000

134,414

(11,331,848}
{8,456,965)
{6,228,162)

(12,522,669}

6,014,002

{27,054,164)

560,000
585,214
(560,000)
(430,981)

11,570,000
185,000,000
(24,900,000)
54,000,000
(23,620,726)
6,800,000
{9,550,000)
{21,497,085)
{40,450,000)
(10,153,766)

{127,102,757)

(96,786,779)

29,263,813

> »

(59,579,796}

{3,962,041)

154,233

127,193,412

(3,717,145
3,817,004

99,861

betyalf of fhe Bbard |fr£;m5|;s
' f

Chalrman
DIN : 00012602 A

Prashanth Kumar K N
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chennal

Date: 22/05/2019
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2019

Total equity

{Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Particulars Share capital | General reserve |Retained earnings| Actuarial gain / Total
(loss)

Balance at March 31, 2017 5,100,000 (27,765,471) (62,949,939} {237,110) (85,852,540}
2017-18
Profit for the year - (96,786,779} {96,786,779}
On issue of shares 11,570,000 - 11,570,000
Utilised during the year - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax . - 558,314 358,314
Balance at March 31, 2018 16,670,000 (27,765,471)|  (159,736,738) 321,204 (170,511,005)
2018-19 -
Profit for the year - (51,012,834) (51,012,834)
On issue of shares - -
Utilised during the year = - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - B (425,018) (425,018)
Balance at March 31, 2019 16,670,000 (27,765,471} (210,749,572) (103,814) (221,948,857}

For and on behalf of the Boardyof Directors

Harish Laksheman
Chairman
DIN : 00012602

XA

Prashanth Kumar K N
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chennai

Date: 22/05/2019

S

As per our report of even date attached
For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants

FRN 0043325

Pratap C Hegde
Executive Director
DIN : 02496473

.

Chenan kﬁahy
A L\M-/A-“—/’ . Partner
Vivekanandaa M M. No. 16043
Secretary

Place; Chennal
Date: 22/05/2019
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note-1 « Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, ¢ritical judgements and key estimates

1 General Information
RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED (The Company) was incorporated as a private company on 26th March 2009. Consequent to investment by Rane
Holdings Limited, a publicly listed company, by acquiring a major stake in the company, the company has become its subsidiary w.e.f. August
3, 2017,

The Company is engaged in the business of providing technological services for transportation industry by designing and developing, promoting
and marketing telematics, vehicle intelligence, remote monitoring related products and services globally.

2 Summary of significant accounting poficies

2.01

2.02

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for certain financial Instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accaunting poticies below, in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India and camply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the act"} read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes 2015 and other relevant provisions of
the act,

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ with the date of initial application being April 1, 2018. Ind
AS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework on revenue recognition. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 'Revenue’ and Ind AS 11
‘Construction Contracts’. The application of Ind AS 115 did not have material impact on the financial statements. As a result, the
comparative Infarmation has not been restated.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA™) has
notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or Income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a fareign
currency. The amendment is effective from April 1, 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial
statements and concluded that the Impact is not materfal.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. Based an the
nature of the products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycte as 12 months for the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and
liabilities,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confermity with accounting principles generally accepted in Indla requires the
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amount of assets and Liabilities as of the Balance
Sheet date, reported amount of revenues and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the Balance Sheet date.
These estimates and associated assumptions are based on histarical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Although these estimates are based on the managements best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about the
assumptions and estimates may result in outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
pericd in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future perfods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note-1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, critical judgements and key estimates

2.03 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, (inclusive of impart duties and non - refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates), other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the ltem and restoring the site on which it is located, if any.

If the Company has acquired a Property, Plant and Equipment on deferred term basis and terms are beyond normal credit terms,
property plant and equipment will be recognized on cash price equivalent, i.e. discounted amount.

The cost of assets not ready for use as at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed under Capital Work-In-Progress.

The cost of replacement spares/ major inspection relating to property, plant and equipment Is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When parts
of an item of property plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate ltems (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property , Plant and Equipment {Tangible assets) is generalty computed on a pro-rata basis on the basis of the estimated
life specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 under Straight line method. The useful life of assets prescribed in Schedule 1 te
the Companies Act, 2013 are considered for the purpose of Computation of Depreciation. However, If the management’s estimate of the
useful life of a fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on an annual review Is different from that
envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a such rate based on the useful life / remaining useful life as technically
advised. Accordingly, depreciation is provided based on the useful life indicated below which is different from that stated in Schedule Il
to the Compantes Act,2013.

Assets Life

Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipments
Computers
Computer Servers
Toots & Equipments
Electrical Fittings
Yehicles

W W e O b ko

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the unexpired period of lease or useful life of assets estimated as 5 years, whichever is less.

Depreciation charge on additions / deletions is restricted to the period of use. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed annually,

The additions to Property, Plant and Equipment with individual unit value upto Rs.10,000/- is capitalised and depreciated at 100% in the

year of capitalisation.
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nate-1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, critical judgements and key estimatas

2.04 Intangible Assets

Internally Generated Software / Intangible Assets

Research costs are expensed as incurred, Costs {internal and external) associated with developing or obtaining internal-use software and
software that are embedded in a product and sold as part of the product as a whole are capitalized if the following criteria are met in
full:

o The product or the process is clearly defined, and the cost elements can be identified and measured reliably;
0 The technical feasibility is demanstrated;

o The product or the process will be sold or used in the business;

o The asset will generate future financial benefits.

o Sufficient technical, financial and other resources for project completion are in place.

Costs expensed in prior accounting periods will not be capitalized.

Subsequent expenditure on the product, which are essential to keep it relevant for customers, are expensed and are included in cost of
sales

Depreciation begins when the product is transferred from development to production. Uncertainty exists with respect to the expected
period of benefits, as this depends on the future technological development in the market.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life as given balow.

Asset Life
Bought out Software licence 3
Internally Generated Software / Intangible Assets 6

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life (including those under
development), are reviewed annually.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

2.04 Impairment

2,05

2.06

Assessment is done annually as to whether there is any indication that an asset {tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, Is considered as a cash generating unit, If any such
indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash generating unit Is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds
their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating
unit’s fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date
as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or
may have decreased. In such cases, impairment losses are reversed 10 the extent the assets carrying amount does not exceed, the
carrying amount that would have been determined If no Impafrment Loss had previously been recognised.

Borrowing Cost

Borrawing costs that are attributable to the acquisition / construction / production of qualifying assets {assets which require substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use) are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
revenue.

Inventeries

Inventories are stated at lower of weighted average <ost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises of purchase cost, cost of
conversion and other cost including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing the inventory to present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated setling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs neces: to make the sale
ﬁe Page 7 of 35



RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nota-1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, critical judgements and key estimates

2,07 Forelgn Currency Transaction
Initial Recognition
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsaguent Racognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated In a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

All manetary assets and Uabilities in forelgn currency are reinstated at the end of accounting period.
Exchange differences on reinstatement of all monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.08 Revanue Recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from Internet of Things (IOT) related telematics services by developing, promoting and
marketing telematics vehicle intelligence, remote monitoring related products and services globally. Revenue is recognized upon transfer
of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services.

Arrangements with customers for software related services are either on a fixed-price or on a time-and-material basis.

a) Time and material contracts

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue fram the end of the last
invoicing to the reporting date is recognized as unbilled revenue,

b) Fixed-price contracts

Revenue from fixed-price contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to
measurement or collectability of cansideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty as
ta measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expended
are used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

The Company's revenue is categorized broadly into the following types:
i) Hardware sales

if} Installation and support services

iii) Subscription charges

1) Hardware sales:
The Company derives revenues from the sale of hardware and customized accessories which is used for vehicle tracking and remote
monitoring purpose.

it) Installation and support services

Installation services are provided after the sale of hardware and hence recognized only after the related services are performed.

Suppart services are provided as per the requirement of the customer post installation of the hardware. These services are billed to the
customer on a Time and Material contract basis.

11f) Subscription ¢harges
Subscription charges comprises of standard offerings by the company for the usage of the tracking platform by the custorer,

Revenues recognized in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets {which is classified as unbitled revenue) while invoicing in
excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which is classified as unearned revenues}.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract
price, The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and
whether the pricing is at the standalone setling price, Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up
basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at
the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalene
selling price.

The company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in the Statement of Profit and loss. @——.

o
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note-1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, critical judgements and key estimates

2.09 Other income

Interest : Interest income is recognised on a effeclive interest method taking into account the amount cutstanding and the rate
applicable.

2.10 Employee Benefits

2.1

1. Short - Term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

2. Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations.
Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made an a monthly basis.

3. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) administered by LIC covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, Incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of
employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.
Actuarial losses / gains are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss,

4. Other Long term employee benefits

Compensated Absence

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are
treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same {5 measured at the expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year end are
treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit methad)
at the end of each year. Actuarial losses / gains are recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement in the year in which they arise.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the
period, Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the relevant prevailing tax
laws. Tax expenses relating to the items in profit and loss shall be treated as current tax as part of profit and loss and those relating to
items in other comprehensive income {OCI) shall be recognised as part of the part of OCI.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Uabilities in the financial
statements and corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward
only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any and
the same is recognised to the extent it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitles are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are ofiset when
there fs a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilitles representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities relate ta taxes an income levied by the same governing taxation law.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of

the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period. MAT shall be treated as part of deferred tax assets.

o>
e
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note-1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, critical judgements and key estimates

2,12

2.13

2.14

Investments

Investments which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments
are made are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments, Current investments are
carried at lower of cost and quoted/fair value, computed category wise. Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Decline in value, if
any, which is not considered temporary in nature, is provided for,

Provisions and Contingent Liabilitles

Provisions : Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation, Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet
date and are not discounted to its present value,

Contingent Liabilitles : Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of ane or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the controt
of the company or a present obligatian that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there is a possible obligaticn or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying ecaonomic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or lass for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is
the net profit for the period after deducting equity dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other
than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares ovtstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

3 (Critical accounting judgements, assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty

01

3.02

3.03

1.04

The following are the critical judgements, assumptions concerning the future, and key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described at Note 2.03 above, the charge in respect of periodic depreciation for the vear is derlved after determining an estimate of
an asset’s expected useful life and the expecied residual value at the end of Its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's
assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed annually. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or
service output of the asset,

Employee Benefits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuation, which involves making assumptions about discount rates,
expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such
estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Taxation

Significant assumptions and judgements are involved in determining the provision for tax based on tax enactments, relevant judicial
pronouncements and tax expert opinions, including an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments / litigations,
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available, based on
estimates thereof,

Provisions and contingencies
Critical judgements are involved in measurement of provisions and contingencies and estimation of the likelihood of occurrence thereof

based on factors such as expert opinion, past experience etc.
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mote-1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, critical judgements and key estimates

4 Recent accounting pronouncements

4.01

On March 38, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019
containing Ind AS 116 - Leases and related amendments to other Ind ASs. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related
interpretation and guidance. The standard sets out principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently,
operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements
for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements as per Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019,

The Company is evaluating the effect of the above on its standalone financial statements.

4.02 Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

4,03

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corperate Affairs ("MCA™) has notified
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 containing Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which clarifies the application and measurement requirements in Ind AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments, The current and deferred tax asset or liability shall be recognized and measured by applying the requirements in Ind AS 12
based on the taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates determined by applying this
appendix. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019,

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 1Z - Income Taxes. The amendments
require an entity to recagnise the income tax consequences of dividends as defined in Ind AS 109 when it recognises a liability to pay a
dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable
profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events, The
amendment will come into faorce for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits in connection with
accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements, The amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and
to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus
was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment will come into force for accounting periods

beginning on or after Aprit 1, 2019, though early application is permitted.
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2

(Amounts in fndran Rupees)

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Carrying amounts of;

Leasehold improvements 5,076,746 9,896,805
Fumiture and Fixtures 94,127 182,623
Office Equipments 1,045,064 2,330,712
Computers (including servers) 5,195,005 3,771,916
Tools & equipments 333,370 390,863
Electrical Equipments 1,762 16,209
Vehicles 138,622 312,994
Tatal 11,834,696 16,902,122
Cost Leasehold Furniture and Office Computers Tools & Electrical Yehicles Total
improvements Fixtures Equipments Equipments Equipments

Balance as at March 31, 2017 17,500,313 306,040 4,942,896 6,836,978 1,866,319 26,812 3,407,208 34,887,066
Additions - - 90,679 340,302 - - 430,981
Disposals - . - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 17,500,313 304,040 5,023,575 6,836,078 2,206,621 26,812 3,407,208 35,318,047
Additions - 78,979 3,743,237 281,759 - 4,103,975
Disposals 5,296,084 - . 1,898,224 7,194,308
Balance as at March 31, 2019 12,204,729 306,040 5,112,554 10,580,215 2,488,380 26,812 1,508,984 32,227,714
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Leasehold Furniture and Qffice Computers Tools & Electrical Vehicles Total
Balance as at March 31, 2017 2,016,123 35,475 921,933 1,566,737 431,444 3,382 805,555 5,780,649
Depreciation for the year 5,587,885 87,942 1,780,930 1,498,325 1,384,314 7,221 2,288,659 12,635,276
Eliminated on disposals . : % : . = c
Balance as at March 31, 2018 7,604,008 123,417 2,702,863 3,065,062 1,815,758 10,603 3,094,214 18,415,925
Depreciation for the year 4,461,862 88,496 1,364,627 2,320,148 339,252 14,447 - 8,588,832
Eliminated on disposals 4,937,887 - . 1,723,852 6,661,739
Balance as at March 31, 2019 7,127,983 211,913 4,067,490 5,385,210 2,155,010 25,050 1,370,362 20,343,018
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 9,896,805 182,623 2,330,712 3,771,916 390,863 16,209 312,994 16,902,122
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 5,076,746 94,127 1,045,064 5,195,005 333,370 1,762 138,622 11,834,696

\( td
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RAMNE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 3
{Amounts in indian Rupees)

Intangible Assets As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Carrying amouonts of:

Computer Software 26,437,507 35,361,122
Total 26,437,507 35,361,122
Particulars Goodwill Computer Software Total

Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,500,000 50,983,478 52,483,478

Additions during the year : - -
Disposals during the year

-

Balance as at March 31, 2018 1,500,000 50,983,478 52,483,478
Additions during the year . -
Disposals during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,500,000 50,983,478 52,483,478

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Balance as at March 31, 2017 - 6,631,0%6 6,631,096
Amortisation expense : 8,991,260 8,991,260
Eliminated on disposals . -

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Balance as at March 31, 2018 1,500,000 15,622,356 17,122,356
Amaortisation expense . 8,923,615 8,923,615
Eliminated on disposals + - -

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,500,000 24,545,971 26,045,971
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 - 35,361,122 35,361,122
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 - 26,437,507 26,437,507

. | ) ' )

Page 13 of 35




RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amaunts in Indian Rupees}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Non Current Assets {(Contd..)

Note 4

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity held as collateral
security against term loans/ working capital loans

- Recurring Deposits . 3,875,214
Rent Deposits 2,223,687 2,539,027
Earnest Money Deposits 1,078,700 777,550
Deposits with statutory autharities 1,403,544 1,459,559
Advance payment of Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Met of provision for
income tax) 8,478, 860 8,529,370
Other Utility Depasits 32,783 110,988
Total 13,217,574 17,291,708

Non - current financial assets - notes:
Restricted Bank Deposits include Rs. Nil and Rs.38,75,214/- as at March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, held as security in relation to
interest and repayment of bank borrowings. These are pledged till the
maturity of the respective borrowings.

Deposit  with statutory authorities include  Rs.14,03,544/- and
Rs.14,59,559/- as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, held
as a deposit in relation to ongoing disputes with service tax autharities.
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:

{Amounts in Indian Rupees)

As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets 51,900,000 36,440,000
Deferred tax liabilities {590,000} {5,142,000)
Deferred tax assets (Net) 51,310,000 31,298,000
2018-19 Opening balance | Recognised in Recognised in Closing balance
profit or loss Other
comprehensive
income
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) in relation to
Property plant and equipment and intangible assets {5,142,000) 4,552,000 {5%0,000)
Business loss carried forward 20,739,000 15,615,000 36,354,000
Depreciation loss carried forward 10,961,000 {2,000) 10,959,000
Provision for Gratuity 1,321,000 358,669 149,331 1,829,000
Provision for leave salary 721,000 156,000 877,000
Provision for doubtful debts 1,716,000 (260,000) 1,456,000
Deferred revenue expenses 8,000 267,000 275,000
Provision for statutory liability 824,000 (824,000) -
Provision for bonus 150,000 - 150,000
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) 31,298,000 19,862,669 149,331 51,310,000
2017-18 Opening balance | Recognisedin Recognised in Closing balance
profit or loss Other
comprehensive
income
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) in relation to
Property plant and equipment and intangible assets (7,229,614} 2,087,614 (5,142,000}
Business loss carried forward 5,311,287 153,427,713 20,739,000
Depreciation loss carried forward 7,400,382 3,560,618 . 10,961,000
Provision for Gratuity 1,234,415 232,750 {196,165} 1,321,000
Provision for leave salary 753,337 (32,337) : 721,000
Provision for doubtful debts 2,599,958 (883,958) 1,716,000
Deferred revenue expenses 18,540 (10,540) 8,000
Provision for statutory Uability 6,377,340 (5,553,340} 824,000
Provision for bonus 248,712 (98,712} : 150,000
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) 16,764,357 14,729,808 (196,145) 31,298,000
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RAMNE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amounts in indian Rupees)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Note 6
Other Non-Current Assets
Prepaid Rent 115,572 167,926
Total 115,572 167,926
Current Assets
Note 7
Inventories
Stock-in-Trade 6,917,663 11,490,465
Total 6,917,663 11,490,465
Haote 8
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
Secured, considered good = *
Unsecured, considered good 35,522,077 28,750,030
Unsecured, considered doubtful 5,600,5M 6,598,309
Subetotal 41,122,668 35,348,339
Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) {(5,600,591) (6,598,3209)
Total 35,522,077 28,750,030
Note 9
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and in banks, cheques and drafts on hand.
(a) Balances with banks
= In Current accounts 47,774 58,592
{b) Cash on hand 110,627 41,269
Total 158,401 99,861
Note 10
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets
Rent Deposits 1,000,000 997,714
Unbilled revenue 2,752,501 1,030,200
Advance recoverable in cash 1,170,564 586,764
Other receivables (Refer Note No. 28 - 7.03) 560,000 560,000
Total 5,483,065 3,134,678
Note 11
Current tax assets {Net)
Tax deducted at source 3,702,105 3,293,499
Total 3,702,105 3,293,499
Note 12
Other Current Assets
Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated :
{a) Advances paid for purchase of goods/ services 946,923 1,603,213
H{b)-Salary Advapec 218;002 6,000
{c) Travel Advance - 93,975
{d} Prepaid Expenses 2,196,508 1,613,797
Total 3,361,433 3,316,985
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NQOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity
Note 13A - Equity Share Capital

13A.1 AUTHORISED :

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

No. of Shares

Amount (Rs.)

No. of Shares

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1,667,000 16,670,000 1,667,000 16,670,000
13A.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,667,000 16,670,000 1,667,000 16,670,000
16,670,000 16,670,000
13A.3 Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars of Equity Shares of Rs,10 each fully paid up 2018-19 2017-18
No. of Shares Amount (Rs.) No. of Shares Amount (Rs.)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,667,000 16,670,000 510,000 5,100,000
Allotment of shares during the year - - 1,157,000 11,570,000
Balance at the end of the year 1,667,000 16,670,000 1,667,000 16,670,000

13A.4 Rights, preferences and restriction relating to Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value ¢of Re.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 15 subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General meeting. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are elible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in

(=

proportion to their shareholding.

i
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13A.5 Particulars of equity share holders holding more than 5% of the total paid up equity share capital:

MName of the share holder

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Nos. % Nos. %
M/s. Rane Holdings Limited 1,157,000 69.41% 1,157,000 69.41%
Mr. Pratap Hegde 199,230 11.95% 199,230 11.95%
Mr. Vinay K Prasad 107,250 6.43% 107,250 6.43%
Mr. Pratap Hegde jointly with M/s. Rane Holdings Limited 100,020 6.00% 100,020 6.00%

Note 13B - Instruments entirely equity in nature
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
13B.1 AUTHORISED :
Preference Shares of Rs.10 each

13B.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

No. of Shares Amount (Rs.}

No. of Shares | Amount (Rs.)

28,333,000 283,330,000

23,333,000 233,330,000

24,350,000 243,500,000

243,500,000

18,500,000 185,000,000

185,000,000

138.3 Reconciliation of number of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

fully paid up

Particulars of Compulsorily Canvertible Preference Shares of Rs.10 each

2018-19

2017-18

No. of Shares Amount (Rs.)

No. of Shares | Amount (Rs.)

Balance at the beginning of the year J—
Allotment of shares during the year
|Balance at the end of the year

18,500,000 185,000,000
5,850,000 58,500,000

18,500,000 185,000,000

24,350,000 243,500,000

18,500,000 185,000,000
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13B.4

13B.5

Rights, preferences and restriction relating to Compulsorily Canvertible Preference Shares
1. The above shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares convertible at 1:1 ratio.

2. Rights to dividend - In the event the Company declares dividend, the holder of the CCPS shall have preference over equity shares and shall be
entitled to receive a cumulative dividend at the rate of 0.1% of the amount invested per annum.

3. Rights during liquidation

a. In the event of liquidation, along with all the other shareholders of the company, RHL is entitled to receive a pro rata share in the remaining
proceeds available after the payment of the outside liabilities and the Liguidation Preference share subscription amount. - Liguidation Preference.
b. At the time of liquidation, RHL can, either before or after winding up, elect in writing not to avail the Liquidation Preference specified in Point
{a) above and an such election, the holder shall be entitled far the proceeds of and / or assets available for distribution as if the Liquidation
Preference had never existed.

4, Reservation of shares 1ssuable upon Conversion - The Company shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its authonsed but unissued
Equity Securities, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the CCPS, such number of Equity Shares sufficient to effect the conversion.

5. Date of Conversion - The shares shall be converted by RHL effecting the Put Option at any time but not later than August 31, 2027 ("Mandatory
Cenversian Date”). The CCPS shall be Compulsorily convertible into Equity Shares on the Mandatory Conversion Date.

Particulars of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares holding more than 5% of the total paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares Capital:

Name of the Preference Share holder As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Nos, % Nos. %
M/s. Rane Holdings Limited 24,350,000 100.00% 18,500,000 100.00%

(=2
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

MNote 14 Other equity As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Ind AS Transition Reserve (27,765,471) (27,765,471)
Other Comprehensive Income {103,814} 321,204
Retained Earnings (210,749,572) (159,736,738)
Total (238,618,857) {187,181,005)

The general reserve 15 used from time to time to transfer profits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes. As
the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity te another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit

ar Loss.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

(a) Ind AS Transition Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

{27,765,471)

(27,765,471)

Balance at the end of the year {27,765,471) (27,765,471)
(b} Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year 321,204 (237,110)
Movement during the year (425,018) 558,314
Balance at the end of the year {103,814) 321,204
(c) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (159,736,738) (62,949,959)
Profit/ (loss) attributable to the owners of the company (51,012,834) (96,786,779)
Balance at the end of the year (210,749,572) {159,736,738)
Grand Total {238,618,357) {187,181,005)
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Note 154 Mon-current borrowings Non-Current Portion Current Maturities
As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loans
i) from banks 4,809,337 367,095 3,378,742
Unsecured Loans
i) fram other parties 30,239,050 28,737,200 21,314,478 18,491,386
Total 30,239,050 33,596,537 21,681,573 21,870,128
Nate 15B  Current borrowings As at As at

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Secured - at amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand
i} from banks 29,956,682 18,589,138
Total 29,956,682 18,589,138

Terms of repayment of above borrowings
Indian rupee loan from banks

Bank

Terms of repayment

(Secured)

Term loan from Corporation Bank

Secured by hypothecation of assets i.e. servers and accessories
purchased out of this term loan also secured against Credit
Guarantee Fund Trust for Micra and Small Enterprises
(CGMTSE),

Loan availed Rs.24,50,000/- is repayable in 36 equated monthly installments
of Rs.80,152/- each commenced from October 2016, Interest is payable on
monthly basis commenced from 28 September, 2016.

Warking Capital facilitles (fund based) from HDFC Bank
Limited

Secured by way of exclusive charge on the current assets of
the Company and also secured by way of comfort letter from
M/s. Rane Holdings Limited {Holding Company).

The cash credit facility is payable on demand as per the latest saction letter
dated 10 January 2019. The total limit sanctioned in Rs.6,00,00,000/- with
sub limits for purchase bill discounting and bank guarantee.

{(Unsecured)

Term Loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Private
Limited

Secured by way of comfort letter from M/s. Rane Holdings
Limited {Holding Company).

Loan availed Rs.5,00,00,000/- is repayable in 33 equated monthly
instaliments of Rs.15,15,200/- each commencing from Feb-2018. Interest is
payable on monthly basis commencing from 31 October, 2017.

Loan availed Rs.2,00,00,000/- is repayable in 48 equated monthly
installments of Rs.5,09,000/- each commencing from Sep-2019. Interest fs
payable on monthly basis commencing from 15 December, 2018.

Finance lease of Rs.33,63,290/- is repayable in 16 equated quarterly
installments of Rs.2,64,061/- each commencing from Aug-2018.

Sy

G
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Ammounts in Indian Rupees)

Note 16 - Provisions

Non-Current

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Provisions for employee benefits

1) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No.28-6.02) 3,970,630 2,843,726
i) Pravision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No.28-6.03) 1,617,247 1,274,561
Total 5,587 877 4,118,287
Note 17 - Trade Payables Lurrent

As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 20138

Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of other creditors:

Creditors for expenses and services 11,870,053 6,393,812
Creditors for goods 4,035,937 14,274,997
Creditors for capital goods 44,308 3,129,705
Employee related payables 7,359,230 8,765,491
Total 23,509,528 32,564,005
Note 18 - Other financial liabilities Current
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 297,907 .
Current maturities of long-term debt 21,681,573 21,870,128
Total 21,979,480 21,870,128
Note 19 - Provisions Current
As at As at

March 31, 2019

Mmarch 31, 2018

a) Pravisions for employee benefits

iy Bonus Payable 576,336 576,336
1) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No.28-6.02) 3,063,854 2,236,741
i) Pravision for leave encashment (Refer Note Mo.2B-4.03) 1,757,585 1,496,742
b} Others
Provision for expenses 5,484,942 4,440,984
Total 10,882 717 8,750,803
Note 20 - Cther Liabilities Current
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Unearned Revenue 8,333,313 8,388,313
(b) Advances and Deposits from Customers/Others 1,477,599 2,407,810
(c) Statutory remittances {Contributions to PF and ESIC, Withhelding
Taxes, VAT, Service Tax, G5T etc.) 4,592,705 6,332,180
Total 14,403,616 17,128,503
& 522
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Note 21
Revenue from operations (Refer Note No. 28.5}

Yur
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Sale of Products 96,386,809 44,606,415
Sale of Services 142,249,4M1 99,037,260
Total 238,636,211 143,643,675
Sale of Products

Dormestic sales 93,583,542 41,801,878
Export sales 2,803,267 2,804,537
Total sale of Products 96,386,809 44,606,415
Sale of services

Domestic Services 111,996,311 80,192,950
Export services 30,253,090 18,844,310
Total sale of services 142,249,401 99,037,260
Note 22

Other Income

(a) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not

designated at fair value through profit or loss

-On bank deposits 305,960 460,571
(b} Interest income earned on financial assets that are designated

at fair value through profit or loss

-On rent deposits 153,507 124,643
{c) Interest on income tax refund - 429,288
(d) Balances no more payable written back 1,307,176 67,799
(e) Excess provision for doubtful debts written back (net) 997,718 1,815,775
{f) Profit on Sale of Praperty, Plant & Equipment 353,315 -
{e) Net Foreign £xchange Gain 913,073 -
(f) Others (aggregate of immaterial items} 309,529 55,627
Total 4,340,278 1,953,703
Note 23

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Opening Stock 11,490,465 3,033,500
Closing Stock 6,917,663 11,490,465
{Increase)/ decrease in inventory 4,572,802 {8,456,965)
Note 24

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 107,758,390 95,468,502
Consultancy charges of functional resources 14,241,067 10,331,541
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2,386,528 2,603,033
}St_aff Welfare Expenses 2,688,956 1,749,324
Total 127,074,941 110,152,401
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Note 25
Finance Cost
a) Interest costs:

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 9,265,277 8,540,052

Interest on Redeemable Preference Shares 8,973,061

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 2,173,424 1,089,511
b} Other borrowing Costs 500,000 422,679
Total 11,938,700 19,025,303
Note 26
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment pertaining to
continuing operations (Refer Note No,2) 8,588,832 12,635,276
Amortisation of Intangible assets (Refer Note No.3) 8,923,615 8,991,260
Total 17,512,447 21,626,536
Note 27
Other Expenses
Field and other support services 23,489,428 16,162,389
IT Infrastructure and hosting services 15,220,798 8,648,796
Courier charges 2,829,914 1,330,046
Power and Fuel 1,528,004 1,641,703
Rent 7,878,564 7,629,298
Equipment Hire Charges 96,450 2,665,863
Travelling and Conveyance 10,960,686 9,775,356
Repairs and Maintenance

- Buildings 2,414,762 2,294,668
- Others 287,155 1,382,712

Insurance 208,967 296,988
Watch & ward expenses 944,317 524,701
Rates and Taxes 1,842,256 2,433,040
Auditers' Remuneration (Refer Note 27.1 below} 434,294 379,659
Directors' Sitting Fees - 80,000
Bad debts written off 591,012 750,714
Bad advances written off 391,118 -
Administration expenses 2,300,584 2,571,239
Professional Charges 2,047,117 3,315,823
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 225,252 333,369
Bank Charges 278,645 304,388
Loss on discarding of fixed assets 358,196 -
Donation - 11,000
Net Foreign Exchange Loss - 134,414
Miscellaneous Expenses 66 3,937
Total = 74,378,086 62,669,700
27.1. Payment to auditors
For audit 240,000 240,000
For tax audit 80,000 80,000
For limited review 90,000 30,000
For ather services 50,000 -
For reimbursement of expenses 24,294 29,659
Total 484,294 379,659
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RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 28
1 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1.01 Current tax
In respect of current year {ineligible foreign tax credits written off)
In respect of prior years {ineligible foreign tax credits written off)

1.02 Deferred tax
In respect of current year

Total income tax expense

2 EARNINGS PER SHARE

2.01 Basic Earnings per share
A Profit for the year
B Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B)
A/B  Total basic earnings per share (A/B)

2.02 Diluted Earnings per share
C Profit for the year (A)
D Weighted average number of shares outstanding {B)
C/D  Total diluted earnings per share (A/B}
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(Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

615,362 .
836,718 118,122
1,472,080 118,122

{20,012,000)

(14,531,643)

{20,012,000)

(14,533,643)

(18,539,921)

{14,415,521)

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

(51,012,834)
1,667,000
{30.60)

(51,012,834)
3,618,235
(.16}

(96,786,779)
1,172,501
(82.55)

{96,786,779)
9,324,555
(10.38)




RANE T4U PRIVATE LIMITED
I

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SEGMENT REPCRTING

The Company 1s engaged in the business of providing technological services far transportation industry by designing and developing, promating and marketing telematics, vehicle
mtelligence remote monitonng related products and services globally. The Chief Operating Decision Maker {Board of Directors) review the operating results as a whole for
purposes of making decisions about resources to be allocated and assess 1ts performance, the entire operations are to be classified as a single business segment, namely foT
(Internet of Things) Solutions for transportation industry. The geographical segments considered for disclosure are - India and Rest of the World.

3‘L01 Geographical Information

Particulars Revenue from customers Non - current assets**
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 201% | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
India 205,579,853 121,994,828 102,965,349 101,020,878
Rest of World 33,056,357 21,648,847 . .
Tatal 238,636,211 143,643,675 102,965,349 101,020,878

* Non-current assets are used 1n the operations of the Company to generate revenues both in Inda and outside India.

3.02 Information about major customers
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Revenue from sale of products and services to largest customers (individually greater than
10% of total sales) 108,350,457 21,171,642

4 Going Concern
The|Company has accumulated losses at the balance sheet date although networth s positive. Also the current liabilities are in excess of the current assets. Considering the
expected increase in business, there would be reasonable profits in the near future to enable the Company to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities under normal course of

its business and in addition there would be continued support from the holding company as and when required. Accardingly, these financial statements have been prepared on
Going Concemn assumption which is considered appropnate.

2 —
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5 Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31,2019 by offenngs and contract-type. The Company believe that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cashflows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Revenue by offerings

Hardware sales 96,386,809 44,606,415
Installation and support services 48,341,096 13,531,767
Subscription charges 93,908,305 85,505,493
Total 238,636,211 143,643,675
Revenue by contract type

Fixed price 208,648,720 131,883,287
Time and matenal 29,987,491 11,760,388
Total 238,636,211 143,643,675
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6 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

6.01

6.02

Defined contribution plans

The Company has recognised Rs.23,83,288/- (Previous Year: Rs.25,99,113/-) as expense in Statement of Profit or Loss towards
defined contribution plans. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified fn the rules of the
schemes.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity -

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is
earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service.

In respect of Gratuity plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried
out as on March 31, 2019. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

The Company is exposed to varlous risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk : The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability {as shown
in financial statements).

Investment Risk : The probability or likelinoed of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment,

Salary Escalatfon Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of
plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s (abilty,

Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is
exposed to the risk of actual experlence turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan of the Company and the amount recognized In the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars Gratuity {Unfunded)
2018-19 2017-18

Present Value of obligatfons at the beginning of the year 5,080,467 4,156,680
Current service cost 1,442,140 1,383,553
Past service cost - 282,129
Interest Cost 341,494 265,979
Re-measurement (gains)/(psses:

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustment 574,349 (754,479)
Benefits paid {403,966) (253,395)
Present Yalue of obligations at the end of the year 7,034,484 5,080,467

Changes in the fair value of planned assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Expected Return on plan assets

Contributions from the employer x S
Benefits Paid - -
Actuarial gain/ (lass) on plan assets o

Falr Value of plan assets at the end of the year

Amounts recognized In the Balance Sheet

Projected benefit abligation at the end of the year 7,034,434 5,080,467
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year - -
Funded status of the plans - Liabillty recognised in the balance sheet 7,034,484 5,080,467
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss

Current service-cost A8, T80 1,393,553
Past service cost - 282,129
Net Interest Expense 141,494 265,979
Met Cost in Profit or Loss 1,783,634 1,931,661

C >
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6.03

6.04

Compenents of defined benefit cost recognised in Other Comprehensive income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit Liability:

- Actuarial gains and losses arising on Plan abligations 574,349 {754,479}
- Actuariat gains and lesses arising on Plan assets S 0
Net Cost in Other Comprehensive Income 574,349 {754,479)

Assumptions March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Discount rate 6.70% 7.00%
Expected rate of salary increases

Executive Managers & Below / Senior Manager & Above 12.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of attrition

Other Executives and Staff 47,00% 45,00%
Average age of members 343 33.93
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years) * 2.10 r i
Average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 2.29 2.88

* It is actuariatly calculated term of the liability using probabilities of death, withdrawal and retirement.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Salary growth rate

- 1% increase (+100 BP) 7,103,951 5,132,315
- 1% decrease (-100 BP) 6,966,319 5,029,322
Discount rate

- increase of 1% (+100 BP) 6,911,048 5,068,032
- decrease of 1% (-100 BP) 7,163,424 5,093,032

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions wauld occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the
defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The Company's best estimate of the benefit payments expected to be paid on this plan during the next year is Rs.30,64,000/-

(Previous Year: Rs.22,37,000/-).

Long Term Compensated Absence

The assumptions used for computing the long term accumulated compensated absences on actuarial basis are as follows -

Assumptions 2018-19 2017-18
Discount rate 6.70% 7.00%
Expected rate of salary increases

Executives Managers & Below / Senior Manager & Above 12.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of attrition

Executives and Staff 47.00% 45.00%

Defined contribution plan

During the year the following amounts have-been-recognised-in-the statement-at—+rofil srtoson-account o oermer TomTibution —

plans

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Employet’s contribution te Provident Fund 2,302,717 2,469,297

Employer’s contribution to Employees State Insurance 80,571 129,816
'——3"‘ =
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7 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
7.01 Names of relat=d parties and nature of relationsimp:
List of related parties where control exists
{l)  Holding Company
Subsidiary Company
QOther related parties where transactions have taken place during the year

{n) Key Manazement Personnel (KMP)

Rane Holdings Limited (RHL})

Adwise Analytics Private Limited till 31/08/2017

Mr. Pratap Chandra Hegde, Executive Director
(Managing Director till 11/09/2017)

7.02 The above wformation regarding related parties have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

7.03 Transactions /Balances

(Amounts in indian Rupees)

Description

g

Holding Company Subsidiary Company

Total

201319 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19

2017-18

2018-19

2017-18

Transactions during the year

Issue of Equity Sheres

lssue of Compulearly Convertible Preference Shares
Remuneration to Executive Director *

Sale of products/ services

Balance as at Y=ar End

Payable

Remuneration Payable

Recetvables

Dues for sale of tfhares of M/s Adwise Analytics Pvt. Ltd.
Advance for expeqsss

- 11,570,000 - .
58,500,000 185,000,000 . -

7,000,000
b : 27,506 o

350,000

280,401

6,000,000

560,000
856,320

58,500,000
7,000,000

350,000

560,000
280,401

11,570,000
185,000,000
6,000,000
271,506

560,000
856.820

* Remuneration o Key Management personnel Mr, Pratap Chandra Hegde, Executive Director #

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Short term benefils paid
Other Long term B=nefits paid

6,978,400 5,991,000
21,600 9,000

Tatal

7,000,000 5,000,000

# Designation charged from Managing Directer to Executive Director wee.f. 11/09/2017

20

| Y
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8 Contingent liabilities {to the extent not provided for) & Commitments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

8.01 |Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
In respect of matters under dispute with appellate agencies

Service tax matters 1,391,788 2,791,064
Total 1,391,788 2,791,064
8.02 Commitments
Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Other commitments: Maximum gbligation on long term lease of facilities

8,564,084

18,282,702

¢ Exceptional items

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Write off of expenditure capitalised on intangible assets other than amortisation 3,281,588
Write off of goodwill 1,500,000
Total . 4,781,588

10 Dues to micro and small enterprises

There are no creditors that are micro, small or medium enterprises, as defined under the #icro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 who have notified the Company. Accordingly, no disclosures are made in this regard.

11 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 22, 2019.

12 Additiona! information to Financial statements

i As at As at
LR O March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
a) |CIF Value of imports ;
i) Traded Goods 1,832,936 4,579,478
1,832,936 4,579,478
b) |Expenditure in foreign currency
i}| Travelling Expenses 231,855 233,604
ii)|Purchase of RED Equipments 22,602 35,114
254,457 268,718
c) |Earnings in foreign currency
FOB Value of exports:
Sale of products 2,803,267 2,804,537
Sale of services 30,253,090 18,844,310
33,056,357 21,648,847
d} |Other Financial information
i}|Net exchange difference debited/ (credited) to the Statement of Profit and Loss {913,073) 134,414

13 The balances of trade receivables, trade payables and some of the bank balances are subject to cenfirmation. In the opinion of
management, current assets, loans and advances have a value not less than what is stated in the accounts, if realized in the ordinary
course of business.

=
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14. UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

Partiqulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Exchange Rate Amount in Amount in INR | Exchange Rate Amount in Ameunt in INR
{Rs.} Foreign {Rs.) Foreign
Currency {(USD) Currency (USD)
Assety
Trade|Receivables 69.18 121,105 8,378,043 63.78 109,310 6,971,330

15. Fipancial Instruments
15.1 ¢apital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company and debt. The

prima

objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize

shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital. The Company determines the capital funding requirement based on it's long term budgets, which are met through equity,

nstruments entirely equity in nature, internal accruals and a combination of both leng-term and short-term borrowings.
{Ameounts in Indian Rupees)

15,2 Qategories of financial instruments As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Finangial assets

Measuf-ed at fair value through profit or {oss (FVTPL}

(a) Defignated as at FYTPL 3,223,687 3,496,741

Measu-ed at amortised cost

- Trade receivables 35,522,077 28,750,030

- Cast and cash equivalents 158,401 99,861

- Othyr financial assets (Current) 5,483,065 3,134,678

- Oth4r financial assets {Nan-Current) 10,993,887 14,752,681

Finangial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

- Borrpwings {Non-current) 30,239,050 33,596,537

- Borrpwings {Current) 29,956 682 18,589,138

- Trage payables 23,509,528 32,564,005

- Other Financial liabilities 21,979,480 21,879,128

15.3 Financial risk management

The Cgmpany is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The Board of Directors (‘Board’) oversee the management of these financial nsks. The Company monitors and
managps the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
The following disclosures summarize the Company's exposure to financial risks. Quantitative sensitivity analysis have been provided to reflect the impact of reasonably possibte
changgs in market rates on the financial results, cash flows and financial position of the Company.

Bhng
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15.3,1 Market Risk

Market rigk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market conditions. Market risk mainly comprises of
interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, investments, trade payables, trade receivables and derivative financial
instruments. The company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and other price risk.

There thas been no material change to the Company's expasure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are being managed and measured.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk i the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to
changes in interest rates primarily relates to the Company's outstanding floating rate debt. The company has mainly INR denominated long term debt which are subject to annual
interest rate reset. Based on the past experience the variability of interest on such INR derominated loans is not expected to be material,

{b) Foteign Currency risk

The Cgmpany undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Since most of the transactions of the Company
are degnominated in its functional currency (INR), there is no material amount of foreign exchange fluctuation which affects the profitability of the Company and its financial
positign. Hence the Company does not enter into any derivative contracts te hedge its foreign currency exposures.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows :

{Amounts in Indian Rupees)

Curreqcy Liabilities as at Assets as at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
uso . - 8,378,043 6,971,330

Foreigh Currency sensitivity analysis

The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5% increase or decrease in the relevant foreign currency against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis
is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the Company as at the reporting date. 5% represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.

{Amounts in Indian Rupees)
Particulars Impact on profit ar loss for the Impact on total equity as at the
T year end of the reporting period

2018-19 2017-18 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Finanal Assets
uso 419,024 348,566 310,078 257,939
Financial Liabilities
usD o - - -
Total 419,024 348,566 310,078 257,939

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of

the reporting period does not reflect the exposure dunng the year.

15.3.2| Credit risk

Credit pisk refers ta the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obhgations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company's exposure of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and ate value of transactions concluded 15 spread amongst counterparties. Credit exposure 15 controlled by counterparty Limits that are reviewed and approved by the

W!&;’?
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Trade [receivables consist of a number of customers whaose ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. Credit risk arising from ather
balanges with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparty is a bank.

Apart from the following 5 counterparties, the Company does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty.

1. OLA Fleet Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

2, MIUNCTION Services Ltd.

3. Geoodsmover Technolegies

4, Rek§o Nasional Food, PT - mcDonald's Indonesia

5. DHY ECommerce (India) LLP

6. DC Qffice - Chikkaballapura

Concentration of credit risk related to each of these conterparties individually did not exceed 20% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year. Concentration of credit risk
to any jother counterparty did not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time dunng the year,

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivgbles based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes inte account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected
credit {oss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and percentage used in the provision matnix.

Maovemnents in allowance for credit losses of receivables is as below:
(Amounts in indian Rupees}

Year ended Year ended
Particnllars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,598,309 8,414,084
Charg}n statement of profit and loss - .
Release 1o statement of profit and loss (997,718} {1,815,775}
Utilised during the year - -
Balancp at the end of the year 5,600,591 6,598,309

15.3.3 Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
ment of the Company’s short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity nsk by maintaining
te reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuousty monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial

(=2—
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adequ
assets and liabilities.
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The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-dervative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

ParticTars Less than 1 year|  1-5 years More than § Total Carrying Value
March B1, 2019

Borrowings 29,956,682 30,239,050 60,195,732 60,195,732
Trade payables 23,509,528 - 23,509,528 23,509,528
Other Financial Liabitities 21,681,573 - 21,681,573 21,681,573
Total 75,147,783 30,239,050 105,386,833 105,386,833
Marcum 2018

Borrowings 18,589,138 33,596,537 52,185,675 52,185,675
Trade payables 32,564,005 - 32,564,005 32,564,005
Qther Financial Liabilities 21,870,128 - £ 21,870,128 21,870,128
Total 73,023,271 33,596,537 - 106,619,808 106,619,808

16. Prévious year figures have been regrouped wherever required to conform to current year presentation.
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